
Licensing Sub-Committee

Monday 10 December 2018
10.00 am

Ground Floor Meeting Room G03 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Charlie Smith

Councillor Ian Wingfield

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda 
as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, 
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this 
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at 
the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on 
building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the 
council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Andrew Weir on 020 7525 7222 or email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk    

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 30 November 2018

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk


Licensing Sub-Committee
Monday 10 December 2018

10.00 am
Ground Floor Meeting Room G03 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. LICENSING ACT 2003: VODAFONE SMALE HOUSE, 114 GREAT 
SUFFOLK STREET  LONDON SE1 0SL

1 - 26

6. LICENSING ACT 2003: MCDONALD'S, UNIT SU74 TOOLEY STREET 
WEST, LONDON BRIDGE STATION, LONDON SE1 2TF

27 - 84

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.



Item No. Title Page No.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to 
Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  30 November 2018



Item No. 
5.

Classification:
Open

Date:
10 December  2018

Meeting Name:
Licensing Sub-Committee

Report Title Licensing Act 2003: Vodafone Smale House, 114 
Great Suffolk Street  London SE1 0SL

Ward(s) of group(s) affected Borough and Bankside

From Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Vodafone Ltd  for 
a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the 
premises known as Vodafone Smale House, 114 Great Suffolk Street,  London  SE1 
0SL.

2. Notes:

a) This application forms a new application for a premises licence, submitted 
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to 
representations from responsible authorities and an other person and is 
therefore referred to the sub-committee for determination.

b) Paragraphs 8 to 10 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached 
as Appendix A. 

c) Paragraphs 11 to 16 of this report deal with the representations submitted and 
any further correspondence in respect of the application. Copies of the 
representations are attached as Appendices B and C. 

d) Paragraph 18 deals with licensed premises within a 100 metre radius of the 
premises. A map of the area is attached as Appendix D. 

e) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee 
in relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a 
copy of the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the 
meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003  provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

1
Agenda Item 5



5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

7. The premises licence application process involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by 
the applicant to the relevant responsible bodies under the Act. The application must 
also be advertised at the premises and in the local press. The responsible authorities 
and other persons within the local community may make representations on any part 
of the application where relevant to the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence application

8. On 21 September 2018, Vodafone Ltd applied to this council for the grant of a 
premises licence in respect of Vodafone Smale House, 114 Great Suffolk Street, 
London  SE1 0SL. The premises is described as an area comprising of office space, 
meeting rooms and breakout areas. The licence is to authorise the sale /supply of 
alcohol but limited to employees and officers of the organisation in occupation and 
clients, prospective clients and business contacts of either the organisation or its 
employees/officers. Alcohol will normally be suppled by way of hospitality.       
The application is summarised as follows:  

 Supply of alcohol(on the premises):

o Monday to Sunday 11:00 to 23:00

 Operating hours:

o Monday to Sunday 24 hours
 

9. The premises licence application form provides the applicant’s operating schedule. 
Parts J, K, L, and M of the operating schedule set out the proposed licensable 
activities, operating hours and operating control measures in full, with reference to 
the four licensing objectives as stated in the Licensing Act 2003.  Should a premises 
licence be issued in respect of the application the information provided in the 
operating schedule will form the basis of conditions that will be attached to any 
licence granted subsequent to the application.  A copy of the application is attached 
to this report in Appendix A.

2



Designated premises supervisor

10. The proposed designated premises supervisor is Gavin Jones who has a personal 
licence issued by the Royal Borough of Greenwich. 

Representations from responsible authorities

11. There is one representation from the Metropolitan Police Service. 

12. The police representation state that this type of application is unlikely to have much 
of an impact on the licensing objectives, however a number of control measures 
would be required to limit this premises to the activities as described in the 
application and have therefore submitted a number of conditions to promote the 
prevention of crime and disorder objective. These conditions have since been agreed 
by the applicant and the police have withdrawn their representation. 

13. The representation and withdrawal email are attached as Appendix B.

Representations from other persons

14. There is one representation from other person who is a local ward councillor. The 
ward councillor objects on the grounds that the premises is in the Borough and 
Bankside cumulative impact policy area, which already has a substantial supply of 
premises where alcohol can be purchased. Increases in consumption across the 
population are associated with increase in alcohol related harm.  

15. The representation is attached as Appendix C.

Conciliation

16. The representation were forwarded to the applicant representative. The applicant has 
agreed to the police condition and as such the police have withdrawn. There is still an 
outstanding representation from the local ward councillor. The licensing sub- 
committee will be updated on 10 December 2018 of any developments. 

Deregulation of entertainment

17. On 6 April 2015 entertainment became deregulated and as a result: 

 Live unamplified music is deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 on any       
premises.

 Live amplified music and recorded music are deregulated between 08:00 and 
23:00 on licensed premises for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Plays and the performance of dance are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 
for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Indoor sporting events are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 for an 
audience of up to 1000 people.

18. Live music and recorded music can become licensable in on-licensed premises if the 
licensing authority removes the effect of deregulation following a licence review 
(‘licence review mechanism’).

3



19. The showing of films has not been de-regulated.

Map of the local area

20. A map of the area is attached to this report as Appendix D. The premises is identified 
by a triangle at the centre of the map. For purposes of scale only the circle on the 
map has a 100 metre radius. The following licensed premises terminal hours are also 
shown on the map.

El Vergel Co-Operative LTD, 132 Webber Street, London SE1 0QL

 The Provision Regulated entertainments (indoors):

o Monday to Wednesday from 08:00 to 22:00  
o Thursday to Friday from 08:00 to 23:00 
o Saturday from 10:00 to 23:00 
o Sunday from 10:00 to 19:30.

         The sale by retail of alcohol (on sales):

o Monday to Friday from 08:00 to 00:30 
o Saturday from 10:00 to 00:30
o Sunday from 10:00 to 23:30.

Terry’s Café, 158 Great Suffolk Street, London SE1 1PE 

 The sale by retail of alcohol - both on and off sales:

o Monday to Sunday from 12:00 to 23:00 .

The Co-operative Food Group Ltd, 136 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 
0DG

 The sale by retail of alcohol (off sales): 

o Monday to Sunday from 08:00 to 00:00. 

Borough and Bankside cumulative impact zone

21. Council assembly approved the introduction of a special policy for Borough and 
Bankside on the cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises 
(saturation/cumulative impact policy) on 5 November 2008, and extended the area in 
April 2011. This application falls within the policy area.

22. The decision to introduce saturation policy was taken with regard to the committee’s 
concern over rising trends of late night alcohol related violence against the person 
and late night disorder and rowdiness associated with late night licensed premises in 
the area.

23. The effect of this special policy is to create a presumption that applications for new 
premises licenses or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact 
will normally be refused, following relevant representations, unless the applicant can 
demonstrate in their operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

4



24. The applicant has been advised to address the committee's concerns around 
cumulative impact at the meeting.

Southwark statement of licensing policy

25.  Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2020 
on 25 November 2015. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2016. Sections of 
the statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the sub-
committee’s consideration are:

 Section 3 – Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this Authority relies in 
determining licence applications

 Section 5 – Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 – Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current 
special policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To 
be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy

 Section 7 – Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this Authority might consider appropriate by type of premises 
and (planning) area classification.

 Section 8 – The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 – Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of 
the second licensing objective.

 Section 10 – The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on 
the promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 – The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

26. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to 
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining 
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the 
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application on 
its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified by 
the circumstances of the application.

27. Within Southwark’s statement of licensing policy, the premises are identified as being 
within a residential area. Relevant closing times recommended in the statement of 
licensing policy for licensed premises in residential areas are as follows:

5



 Restaurants and cafes: 

o Sunday to Thursday 00:00 
o Friday and Saturday is 01:00. 

 Closing time for public houses, wine bars or other drinking establishments:

o Sunday to Thursday is 23:00 
o Friday and Saturday 00:00.

Resource implications

28. A fee of £635.00 has been paid by the applicant company in respect of this 
application being the statutory fee payable for premises within non-domestic rateable 
value band E. 

Consultation

29. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. A public notice was published in a local 
newspaper and similar notices were exhibited outside of the premises for a period of 
28 consecutive days.

Community impact statement

30. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits 
with all relevant matters taken into account.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

31. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

32. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

33. The general principle is that applications for premises licence applications must be 
granted unless relevant representations are received.  This is subject to the proviso 
that the applicant has complied with regulations in advertising and submitting the 
application.

34. Relevant representations are those which:

 Are about the likely effect of the granting of the application on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives

 Are made by an interested party or responsible authority
 Have not been withdrawn
 Are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

6



35. If relevant representations are received then the sub-committee must have regard to 
them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to:

 To grant the licence subject to:

o The conditions mentioned in section 18 (2)(a) modified to such extent as 
the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

o Any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence.

 To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates.

 To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor.

 To reject the application.

Conditions

36. The sub-committee’s discretion is thus limited.  It can only modify the conditions put 
forward by the applicant, or refuse the application, if it is necessary to do so. 
Conditions must be necessary and proportionate for the promotion of one of the four 
licensing objectives, and not for any other reason.  Conditions must also be within 
the control of the licensee, and should be worded in a way which is clear, certain, 
consistent and enforceable.

37. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

38. Members should note that each objective is of equal importance.  There are no other 
licensing objectives, and the four objectives are paramount considerations at all 
times.

39. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a statutory position.  Conditions 
relating to night café and take away aspect of the license must relate to the night 
time operation of the premises and must not be used to impose conditions which 
could not be imposed on day time operators.

40. Members are also referred to the Home Office revised guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on conditions, specifically section 10.

Reasons

41. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to modify the conditions, or to 
refuse the application for a premises licence application, it must give reasons for its 
decision.

7



Hearing procedures

42. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine 
its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing 
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, 
taking place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either 
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

43. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-
committee to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

44. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible 
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as 
the planning authority.

45. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially.  It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing 
of the application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader 
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must 
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, 
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

8



46. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that 
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future 
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must 
give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make 
representations to them.

47. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises 
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is 
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or 
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

48. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to 
declare personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when 
considering licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are 
required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities. Other 
persons must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a case to 
case basis.

49. Under the Human Rights Act 1998 the sub-committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the 
application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 
17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent 
crime and disorder in the borough.

50. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority 
of the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

51. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in 
carrying out the functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover 
every possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons 
must be given if this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

52. The head of regulatory services has confirmed that the costs of this process over 
and above the application fee are borne by the service. 

9



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Background Papers  Held At  Contact
 Licensing Act 2003
 Home Office Guidance to the Act
 Secondary Regulations
 Southwark statement of licensing    
 policy Case file

 Southwark Licensing, C/O  
 Community Safety &  
 Enforcement, 160 Tooley  
 Street, London, SE1 2QH

 Mrs Kirty Read
Phone Tel: 020 7525 5748

APPENDICES

 Name  Title
 Appendix A  Application for a  premises licence 
 Appendix B  Representation submitted by the police and withdrawal  
 Appendix C  Representation by other person
 Appendix D  Map of local area

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure
Report Author Dorcas Mills, Principal Licensing Officer

Version Final
Dated 28 November 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team  28 November  2018

10



APPENDIX A11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



Working for a safer Southwark 

The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service 
Floor 3 Licensing Office 
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station, 

London 
SE1 2QH 

323 Borough High Street, 

LONDON, 

SE1 1JL 

Tel:     020 7232 6756  
Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk        

Our reference: MD/21/3343 /18 

Date: 24
th

 October 2018

Dear Sir/Madam 

Re:- Vodafone Smale House 114 Great Suffolk Street London SE1 0SL 

Police are in possession of an application from the above for a new premises licence 
865020 refers. The application is for an office premises wishing to supply alcohol to 
employees and bona fide guests attending pre booked events.  

This type of application is unlikely to have much of an impact on the licensing 
objectives, however a number if control measures would be required to limit this 
premises to the activities as described in the application. 

The applicant has offered a number of control measures in the operating schedule, 
however the wording of each needs to be precise and enforceable. 

The following would be required for the promotion of the prevention of crime and 
disorder licensing objective.  

1. That a CCTV system be installed at the premises and be maintained in good

working order and be continually recording at all times the premises are in use

under the licence. The CCTV system must be capable of capturing a clear

facial image of every person who enters the premises.

2. That all CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and

shall, upon request, be made immediately available to Officers of the Police

and the Council.

3. A staff member who is able to operate the CCTV system shall be present at all

times that, they are open to the public.

. 

APPENDIX B22



Working for a safer Southwark 

4. The sale and consumption of alcohol shall be restricted to employees and

officers of the organisation in occupation and bona fide guests of the

organisations or their employees/officers.

The Following is submitted for your consideration, and we would welcome the 
opportunity to conciliate should the need arise. 

Yours Sincerely 

PC Ian Clements 362MD 

Licensing Officer  

Southwark Police Licensing Unit 

23



Police withdrawal email 

From: Ian.Clements@met.pnn.police.uk [mailto:Ian.Clements@met.pnn.police.uk]  

Sent: Wednesday, November 28, 2018 8:34 AM 

To: Mills, Dorcas 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Premises Licence Application - Vodafone Smale House, 114 Gt Suffolk 

Street London, SE1 

Hi Dorcas 

From our side this matter has been conciliated, the applicant has agreed to all the conditions as per 
my original rep. 

Kind Regards 

Ian 

24



From: Morris, Adele  
Sent: Thursday, October 04, 2018 7:04 PM 

To: Regen, Licensing 

Cc: Mills, Dorcas; Noakes, David; Chamberlain, Victor; Public Health Licensing; Tear, Jayne 
Subject: Re: New Premise - 114 Great Suffolk Street 

Dear licensing 

I object to the granting of a licence at this office premises in Southwark. It is in the Borough and 

Bankside Cumulative Impact Policy area, where we already have a substantial supply of premises 

where alcohol can be purchased. Alcohol consumption is a Public Heath issue and Southwark 

Council’s own licensing policy states that: 

• Increases in consumption across the population are associated with

increase in alcohol related harm, especially long term conditions and this is 

demonstrated in NHS statistics for alcohol related illness and deaths 

• The estimated cost of alcohol harm to society is £21 billion per year.

Information on estimated cost to the NHS of alcohol misuse shows that it 

costs £3.5 billion every year, which is equal to £120 per taxpayer. 

Best wishes 

Cllr Adele Morris 

Borough and Bankside Ward Liberal Democrat Councillor 
Opposition Spokesperson for Regeneration 
Vice Chair of Licensing Committee 
Deputy Chair, LGA Environment, Economy Housing and Transport Board 
LGA Planning Advisory Service Board Member 

Tel:0207 525 4377 

Twitter: AdeleLibDem 

APPENDIX C
25

Tel:0207


APPENDIX D
26



Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open

Date:
10 December  2018

Meeting Name:
Licensing Sub-Committee

Report Title McDonald’s, Unit SU74 Tooley Street West, 
London Bridge Station, London SE1 2TF

Ward(s) of group(s) affected London Bridge and West Bermondsey

From Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Capital Arches 
Group  Limited  for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in 
respect of the premises known as McDonald’s, Unit SU74 Tooley Street West,  
London Bridge Station, London SE1 2TF.

2. Notes:

a) This application forms a new application for a premises licence, submitted 
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to 
representations from responsible authorities and is therefore referred to the 
sub-committee for determination.

b) Paragraphs 8 to 9 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached 
as Appendix A. 

c) Paragraphs 10 to 16 of this report deal with the representations submitted and 
any further correspondence in respect of the application. Copies of the 
representations are attached as Appendix B.

 
d) Paragraph 18 deals with licensed premises within a 100 metre radius of the 

premises. A map of the area is attached as Appendix C.
 

e) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee 
in relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a 
copy of the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the 
meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003  provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

27
Agenda Item 6



 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

7. The premises licence application process involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by 
the applicant to the relevant responsible bodies under the Act. The application must 
also be advertised at the premises and in the local press. The responsible authorities 
and other persons within the local community may make representations on any part 
of the application where relevant to the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence application

8. On 16 October 2018, Capital Arches Group Limited applied to this council for the 
grant of a premises licence in respect of McDonald’s, Unit 74 Tooley Street West, 
London Bridge Station, London SE1 2TF. The premises is described as a restaurant 
selling food and non-alcoholic drinks for consumption off the premises. The 
application is summarised as follows:  

 Latenight refreshment (to be consumed off the premises):

o Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 05:00.

 Operating hours:

o Monday to Sunday 24 hours.
 

9. The premises licence application form provides the applicant’s operating schedule. 
Parts J, K, L, and M of the operating schedule set out the proposed licensable 
activities, operating hours and operating control measures in full, with reference to 
the four licensing objectives as stated in the Licensing Act 2003.  Should a premises 
licence be issued in respect of the application the information provided in the 
operating schedule will form the basis of conditions that will be attached to any 
licence granted subsequent to the application.  A copy of the application is attached 
to this report in Appendix A.

Representations from responsible authorities

10. Representations have been received from the Metropolitan Police Service, the 
environmental protection team (EPT) and licensing as a responsible authority.  

28



11. The police representation has submitted with additional supportive information 
supplied by the British Transport Police.  They police are concerned that the 
premises is situated in the Bankside, Borough, London Bridge strategic cultural area 
and the Bankside and Borough district town centre area and also falls within the 
Borough and Bankside cumulative impact policy (CIP) area.  

12. The police welcome the control measures submitted but are worried with issues that 
have been raised with the McDonald’s at Liverpool street station that has a 24 hour 
licence and the impact it is having.  They are concerned that due to the lack of space 
at the premises people who have already consumed alcohol are likely to hang around 
the outside causing anti-social behaviour issues. They do not wish such a situation to 
occur at London Bridge Station.  They object under the crime and disorder and public 
nuisance licensing objectives and state that the application does not address their 
concerns. The police have submitted additional information in support of their 
representation. 

13. The EPT representation objects on the grounds that it is not sufficiently clear from the 
information contained within the application that the licensing objective will be met.  In 
particular there is a lack of clarity around risks of public nuisance from litter and noise 
and want more clarification on certain issues raised.

14. The Licensing representation is based on the Southwark statement of licensing policy 
2016 – 2020 and relates to the licensing objectives for the prevention of crime and 
disorder and the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from 
harm.  

15. The licensing representation goes on to advise that the premises is situated in the 
Bankside, Borough, London Bridge strategic cultural areal and the Bankside and 
Borough district town centre area and also falls within the Borough and Bankside  
CIP area.  Under the Southwark statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2020 the local 
CIP applies to night clubs, public houses and bars, restaurants and cafes, off-
licences, supermarkets, convenience stores and similar premises and the appropriate 
closing times for restaurant and cafes in this area on Sunday to Thursday is 00:00 
and for Friday and Saturday is 01:00. They recommend further conditions to the 
applicant to be added to the licence application and the hours sought be brought in 
line with those recommended by the Southwark statement of licensing policy.

16. The representations are attached as Appendix B.

Representations from other persons

17. There are no representations from other persons.   

Conciliation

18. The representations were forwarded to the applicant representative. The licensing 
sub- committee will be updated on 10 December 2018 of any developments. 

Deregulation of entertainment

19. On 6 April 2015 entertainment became deregulated and as a result: 

 Live unamplified music is deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 on any       
premises.

29



 Live amplified music and recorded music are deregulated between 08:00 and 
23:00 on licensed premises for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Plays and the performance of dance are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 
for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Indoor sporting events are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 for an 
audience of up to 1000 people.

20. Live music and recorded music can become licensable in on-licensed premises if the 
licensing authority removes the effect of deregulation following a licence review 
(‘licence review mechanism’).

21. The showing of films has not been de-regulated.

Map of the local area

22. A map showing the location of the premises is attached to this report as Appendix C.  
London Bridge Station has experienced a high level of recent development and 
regeneration.  There is a high concentration of licensed premises in the immediate 
vicinity both as part of the station complex and the wider locality.  More premises are 
expected to open shortly.  Examples of those in the vicinity are namely:

Vivat Bacchus Restaurant, 4 Hays Lane, London SE1 2HB

 The sale by retail of alcohol (both on and off sales):

o  Monday to Friday from 08:00 to 00:30 
o  Saturday from 10:00 to 00:30
o  Sunday from 10:00 to 23:30.

 The provision of late night refreshment (both indoors and outdoors):

o  Monday to Friday from 23:00 to 00:30
o  Saturday from 23:00 to 00:30
o  Sunday from 23:00 to 23:30.

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of live music (indoors):

o  Monday to Friday from 20:00 to 00:00
o  Saturday from 12:00 to 00:00
o  Sunday from 12:00 to 23:30.

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded music  
(indoors):

o Monday to Friday from 07:00 to 00:30
o Saturday from 10:00 to 00:30
o Sunday from 10:00 to 23:30.

30



Control Risks Group Ltd, 4th Floor, Cottons Centre, London SE1 2QG

 The sale by retail of alcohol (both on and off sales):

o  Monday to Saturday from 10:00 to 23:00
o  Sunday from 12:00 to 22:30.

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors):

o  Monday Saturday from 23:00 to 23:30.

Price Waterhouse Coopers, 1 Hays Lane, London SE1 2RD

 The sale by retail of alcohol (both on and off sales):

o  Monday to Sunday from 07:30 to 23:00.

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded music 
(indoors):

o  Monday to Sunday from 07:30 to 23:00.

London Bridge City, 1 Battle Bridge Lane, London SE1 2HP

 The sale by retail of alcohol (both on and off sales):

o Monday to Sunday from 10:00 to 22:00.

 The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of live and recorded 
music, performances of dance and anything similar (outdoors):

o Monday to Sunday from 10:00 to 22:00.

Upper Crust, Unit B, London Bridge Railway Station, London SE1 9SP

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors):

o Monday Sunday from 23:00 to 05:00.

Nero Express, Unit A, London Bridge Railway Station, London SE1 9SP

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)

o Monday Sunday from 23:00 to 05:00.

Delice De France, London Bridge Kiosk, Railway Approach, London SE1 9SP

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors):

o  Monday Sunday from 23:00 to 05:00.

31



Leon, Unit 43 London Bridge Station, Railway Approach, London SE1

 The provision of late night refreshment (indoors):

o Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 00:30
o Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 01:00.

  The sale by retail of alcohol (both on and off sales):

o   Sunday to Thursday from 11:00 to 00:00
o   Friday & Saturday from 11:00 to 00:30.

Borough and Bankside cumulative impact zone

23. Council assembly approved the introduction of a special policy for Borough and 
Bankside on the cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises 
(saturation/cumulative impact policy) on 5 November 2008, and extended the area in 
April 2011. This application falls within the policy area.

24. The decision to introduce saturation policy was taken with regard to the committee’s 
concern over rising trends of late night alcohol related violence against the person 
and late night disorder and rowdiness associated with late night licensed premises in 
the area.

25. The effect of this special policy is to create a presumption that applications for new 
premises licenses or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact 
will normally be refused, following relevant representations, unless the applicant can 
demonstrate in their operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

26. The applicant has been advised to address the committee's concerns around 
cumulative impact at the meeting.

Southwark statement of licensing policy

27.  Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016 - 
2020 on 25 November 2015. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2016. 
Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to 
the sub-committee’s consideration are:

 Section 3 – Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four 
licensing objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this 
Authority relies in determining licence applications

 Section 5 – Determining applications for premises licences and club 
premises certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers 
issues such as location; high standards of management; and the 
principles behind condition setting.

 Section 6 – Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this 
authority’s approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of 
the current special policy areas and the classifications of premises to 

32



which they apply. To be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the 
policy

 Section 7 – Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of 
licensed operation that this Authority might consider appropriate by type 
of premises and (planning) area classification.

 Section 8 – The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 – Public safety. This provides general guidance on the 
promotion of the second licensing objective.

 Section 10 – The prevention of nuisance. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 – The protection of children from harm. This provides 
general guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

28. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to 
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining 
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when 
considering the applications. However, the sub-committee must always 
consider each application on its own merits and allow exceptions to the 
normal policy where these are justified by the circumstances of the 
application.

29. Within the Southwark statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2020 the following closing 
times are recommended as appropriate within this area for this categories of 
premises as follows:

 Restaurants and cafes: 

o Sunday to Thursday: 00:00 
o Friday and Saturday is 01:00.     

 There are no restriction times for hotel bars and guest houses.

Resource implications

30. A fee of £315.00 has been paid by the applicant company in respect of this 
application being the statutory fee payable for premises within non-domestic rateable 
value band C. 

Consultation

31. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. A public notice was published in a local 
newspaper and similar notices were exhibited outside of the premises for a period of 
28 consecutive days.

33



Community impact statement

32. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits 
with all relevant matters taken into account.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

33. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

34. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

35. The general principle is that applications for premises licence applications must be 
granted unless relevant representations are received.  This is subject to the proviso 
that the applicant has complied with regulations in advertising and submitting the 
application.

36. Relevant representations are those which:

 Are about the likely effect of the granting of the application on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives

 Are made by an interested party or responsible authority
 Have not been withdrawn
 Are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

37. If relevant representations are received then the sub-committee must have regard to 
them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to:

 To grant the licence subject to:

o The conditions mentioned in section 18 (2)(a) modified to such extent as 
the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

o Any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence.

 To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates.

 To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor.

 To reject the application.

Conditions

38. The sub-committee’s discretion is thus limited.  It can only modify the conditions put 
forward by the applicant, or refuse the application, if it is necessary to do so. 
Conditions must be necessary and proportionate for the promotion of one of the four 
licensing objectives, and not for any other reason.  Conditions must also be within 

34



the control of the licensee, and should be worded in a way which is clear, certain, 
consistent and enforceable.

39. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

40. Members should note that each objective is of equal importance.  There are no other 
licensing objectives, and the four objectives are paramount considerations at all 
times.

41. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a statutory position.  Conditions 
relating to night café and take away aspect of the license must relate to the night 
time operation of the premises and must not be used to impose conditions which 
could not be imposed on day time operators.

42. Members are also referred to the Home Office revised guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on conditions, specifically section 10.

Reasons

43. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to modify the conditions, or to 
refuse the application for a premises licence application, it must give reasons for its 
decision.

Hearing procedures

44. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine 
its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The Hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing 

35



so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, 
taking place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either 
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

45. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-
committee to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

46. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible 
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as 
the planning authority.

47. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially.  It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing 
of the application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader 
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must 
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, 
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

48. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that 
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future 
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must 
give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make 
representations to them.

49. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises 
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is 
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or 
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

50. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to 
declare personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when 
considering licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are 
required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities. Other 
persons must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a case to 
case basis.

36



51. Under the Human Rights Act 1998 the sub-committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the 
application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 
17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent 
crime and disorder in the borough.

52. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority 
of the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

53. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in 
carrying out the functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover 
every possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons 
must be given if this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

54. The head of regulatory services has confirmed that the costs of this process over 
and above the application fee are borne by the service. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Background Papers  Held At  Contact
 Licensing Act 2003
 Home Office Guidance to the Act
 Secondary Regulations
 Southwark statement of licensing    
 policy Case file

 Southwark Licensing, C/O  
 Community Safety &  
 Enforcement, 160 Tooley  
 Street, London, SE1 2QH

 Mrs Kirty Read
Phone Tel: 020 7525 5748

APPENDICES

 Name  Title
 Appendix A  Application for a  premises licence 
 Appendix B  Representations submitted by responsible authorities  
 Appendix C  Map of local area

37



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure
Report Author Dorcas Mills, Principal Licensing Officer

Version Final
Dated 28 November 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 28 November  2018

38



APPENDIX A39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



APPENDIX B62



63



64



65



66



67



68



1 

Request: Review of Crime and ASB in the London Bridge area and in relation to the other McDonalds 
restaurants in the Southwark borough. 

Requested by: Sgt Keith Dempster,  Night Time  Economy & Licensing team, MPS 

Data Sources: Metropolitan Police Service – CRIS reports – using Home Office Major and Minor Crime 
classifications, where the Venue Address contains “McDonalds”. 
Metropolitan Police Service CAD  - ASB incidents, where the location contains “McDonalds” 
Southwark Council APP – ASB and noise complaints 
Southwark Council Weapon Sweep log 
Southwark Council Wardens reporting 
Southwark Council CCTV 

Caveats: The figures contained in this document are not the official statistics. Local data extracti on 

procedures may vary from those used by the MPS. 

Author: Jenny Wood, Partnership Analysts, Regulatory Services, Southwark Council 

Date & Version: 23/11/2018 

Classification: Official 

Location 

McDonalds are opening a restaurant at Unit SU74, London Bridge Station and the franchisee has applied 
for a late night refreshment license which would permit 24/7 trading. 

McDonalds, London Bridge Oct 2017- Oct 2018 

Unit SU74 is located in the Tooley Street facing 

arches of the station, opposite Hay’s Lane 

Entrance to Stainer Street 

Store front on Tooley St

 ADDITIONAL 
POLICE 
INFORMATION

69



2 
 

Background 

McDonalds have previously had a restaurant at Guy’s Hospital / St Thomas Street, which closed in 
2016 to make way for the Science Gallery London. 
 
The new location, unit SU74, was previously the Cooperage public house prior to closure for the 
station redevelopment.  The unit has a customer entrance on Tooley Street. There is no access from 
within the station or from Stainer Street, which is now a pedestrian route from Tooley Street to St 
Thomas Street, which is closed (gated) between 01:30 and 04:30 hours for security reasons and to 
allow cleaning.  There is service / delivery access to the rear of the units, under the railway lines 
which is not accessible to the public. 

 
Honest Burgers, an ‘up market’ burger chain with a restaurant on Southwark Street, are to open a 

restaurant in the station although the location, opening date and hours are currently unknown. The 
trading hours of the other premises are 11:00 – 23:00 Sun – Thurs and 11:00-00:00 Fri - Sat.  

 
The station is a transport hub which naturally attracts people to the area: 
Mainline – the station is open between 04:00 (06:00 hrs on Sunday) to 01:00 hours. 
 
Underground:  

 The Jubilee line runs through London Bridge operating a 24 hour service on Friday and Saturday, 
closing at 01:00 on other nights.  

 The Northern Line operates on the Bank branch between 05:45 and 00:40 hrs Monday – 
Saturday, and 07:24 – 23:49 on Sunday.   

 
Buses – Tooley Street is served by 3 buses through the night:  

 12 Dulwich – Oxford Circus which runs 24/7, between 01:00 - 05:00 hrs is every 30 minutes 

 N199 St Mary Cray – Trafalgar Square, runs every 30 minutes between 01:05 - 04:35 hrs 

 N381  Peckham – Whitehall, which runs every 30 minutes between 00:25 - 04:25 hrs 
A further 3 night buses and 2 24/7 services stop at Station Approach or on London Bridge itself. 

 
This product will analyse the following crime and ASB: 

 In the London Bridge Station area, to provide a baseline  

 At other McDonalds restaurants in Southwark 

 At McDonalds in similar locations in London 
 
Please Note: These crime data relates only to crime reported to the Metropolitan Police Service.  BTP 
crime data for the whole period is currently unavailable. 
 

London Bridge Area 
 

There are a number of bars open until 01:00 hrs in the area, especially on a Friday and Saturday 
night.  Venues which are open beyond 01:00 hrs include: 

 Belushi’s on Borough High Street opens from 08:00 – 02:00 daily.  

 Aqua, Shard is open until 01:00 Sunday to Thursday and until 03:00 hrs Friday & Saturday 

 Number 1 bar on Duke Street Hill, opens 14:00 – 03:00 hrs Sunday – Wednesday, and 14:00 – 

06:00 hrs Thursday to Saturday. 
 

 
 

70



3 

Crime Type Crimes Crime Type Crimes

Theft and Handling 147 Other Crime 7

Other Theft 90 Robbery 6

Other Theft Person 26 Personal Property 5

Theft From Motor Vehicle 2 Business Property 1

Theft From Shops 7 Sexual Offences 5

Theft/Taking of Motor Vehicle 1 Other Sexual 4

Theft/Taking of Pedal Cycles 21 Rape 1

Violence Against the Person 29 Burglary 5

Assault with Injury 9 Burglary in Other Buildings 5

Common Assault 7 Drugs 2

Harassment 8 Possession Of Drugs 2

Offensive Weapon 5 Grand Total 201

CCTV  

There is no council CCTV coverage of Tooley Street. There is a TFL camera located on the corner of 
Bermondsey Street; however it is unknown whether this would cover as far as McDonalds due to the 

curve of the building.  

Crime: 

Looking at the crime within a 200m radius of the new McDonald’s restaurant, there were 145 
recorded crimes between 01/10/2017 and 31/10/2018.  

 McDonalds 

23 

10 

34 

83 

3 main focal points: 

 83 crimes in/at the Shard
 54 crimes in/at Hay’s Galleria

 23 crimes at Duke Street Hill

48% of the ‘Other Theft’ crimes occurred 
within Hay’s Galleria (43), 34 of these occurred 
at The Horniman at Hays.  No other crime type 
was reported at this public house. 

71



4 
 

Time Band MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN Total

00:00-00:59 3 1 3 2 1 1 11

01:00-01:59 3 1 1 2 7

02:00-02:59 1 2 3

03:00-03:59 1 1 2

04:00-04:59 1 4 5

05:00-05:59 2 2

06:00-06:59 1 1 2

07:00-07:59 1 1 1 3

08:00-08:59 1 1 1 1 1 5

09:00-09:59 1 1 1 1 4

10:00-10:59 3 2 5

11:00-11:59 1 2 3

12:00-12:59 1 2 1 3 3 10

13:00-13:59 3 1 1 2 2 9

14:00-14:59 1 1 1 1 4

15:00-15:59 1 1 2 1 1 6

16:00-16:59 3 2 1 1 2 9

17:00-17:59 1 2 2 1 3 9

18:00-18:59 2 4 1 1 2 1 11

19:00-19:59 3 6 2 4 4 4 23

20:00-20:59 1 5 5 4 1 1 17

21:00-21:59 2 2 1 2 5 12

22:00-22:59 2 2 8 4 5 1 2 24

23:00-23:59 2 9 3 1 15

Total 25 32 20 34 47 22 21 201

The locations of the 83 recorded crimes linked to the Shard are a mix of the shops, bars and 

restaurants and the hotel within the complex.  4 of the Offensive Weapon offences occurred at the 
Shard, where tourists visiting the viewing platform have been found with penknives or similar by 

security. 
 

Between August 2016 and January 
2018 train services to and through 

London Bridge were reduced due to 
the station redevelopment.  This will 

have impacted on the footfall in the 
area. 
  
Crime levels during the winter 
months were low, however over the 
summer and autumn months, crime 
has continued to increase. 

 
 

 
Crime recorded in October 2018 is 4 times that recorded in October 2017, most of this (32) are 

thefts, which may have been facilitated by the warmer than usual autumn weather. 
 

 
Temporal analysis suggests that the peak times for 

crime in this area are between 19:00-19:59 and 22:00- 
22:59, with Friday being the busiest day.   

 
This is likely to be driven by the night-time economy, 
and the warmer than usual autumn months have 
extended the summer trend. 
 
After 02:00 the number of crimes reported drops until 
around midday. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

72



5 

ASB Type Incidents

	ASB - Nuisance 19

	Begging / Vagrancy 20

	Fireworks 1

	Rowdy Or Inconsiderate Behaviour 40

Rowdy / Nuisance Neighbours 1

Grand Total 81

Anti-Social Behaviour: 

As the map below shows, the ASB reported to police within a 200m radius of the new McDonalds 

restaurant is centred on The Shard/ London Bridge Station, where 64% of the reports refer.  The 
cluster of 38 incidents, includes many at the station entrance on Railway Approach, most of 

which were reported by BTP or TFL. 

A quarter of the ASB calls relate to begging, and half 

relate to Rowdy or Inconsiderate Behaviour, of which 
6 were marked as alcohol related. 

  McDonalds 

38 14 

6 

11 

73



6 
 

Time Band MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN  Total

00:00-00:59 1 3 1 1 6

01:00-01:59 1 1 3 5

02:00-02:59 1 1 2 4

05:00-05:59 1 1

06:00-06:59 1 1

07:00-07:59 1 1 1 3

08:00-08:59 1 1 1 1 1 5

09:00-09:59 1 2 1 1 1 6

10:00-10:59 1 1

11:00-11:59 1 1 1 1 4

12:00-12:59 1 1

13:00-13:59 2 1 3 6

14:00-14:59 1 1 1 3

15:00-15:59 2 1 1 1 5

16:00-16:59 1 3 1 5

17:00-17:59 1 1 1 1 1 5

18:00-18:59 2 1 1 1 5

19:00-19:59 1 1 1 3

20:00-20:59 3 2 1 1 7

21:00-21:59 1 1 1 3

23:00-23:59 1 1 2

Total 12 7 12 12 18 7 13 81

ASB calls to police have fluctuated 

over the year, and do not follow 
the same pattern as the reported 

crime. 
 

There were no more than 2 calls to 
police on any one day. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Temporal analysis shows that Friday saw they 

highest number of calls relating to ASB. 
 

Incidents occurred throughout the day, with the 
highest concentration, approximately 9% of calls, 

between 20:00-20:59. 
 

There are smaller increases in activity between: 
00:00-01:59 – ‘night time economy’ times  

08:00-09:59 – businesses opening 
13:00-13:59 - lunchtime 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There have been no calls to the council regarding ASB within 200m of the new restaurant, and 
only 4 calls regarding noise nuisance.  2 related to loud music, 1 to construction noise and 1 to 
people noise. 

 
Council Warden reporting in this area relates only to engaging with beggars and rough sleepers, 

generally on Tooley Street outside Tesco, St Thomas Street, or Great Maze Pond. 
 

  

74



7 

McDonalds within Southwark 

There are 4 McDonald’s restaurants within Southwark currently, as shown on the following map. 
3 of these operate on a 24/7 basis.  

Old Kent Road 
Open 24/7 (Drive Through) 

Walworth Road 
Open 24/7 

Butterfly Walk, Denmark Hill 
Open:  24/7 

Rye Lane 
Open: 06:00-01:00 Sun-Fri 

 06:00-02:00 Sat 

Despite Rye Lane being open for fewer hours than the 
other restaurants, the level of crime reported at the 
location is similar. 

75



8 

Crime: 

Between 01/10/2017 and 31/10/2018 there have been 226 crimes recorded where the “Address 

Business Name” contains McDonalds. 

By crime type and location these break down as follows: 

Crime Type 
Old Kent 
Road 

Butterfly 
Walk 

Walworth 
Road 

Rye 
Lane* Total 

Burglary 1 0 1 0 2 

Burglary in Other Buildings 1 0 1 0 2 

Criminal Damage 2 6 1 10 19 

Criminal Damage To Motor Vehicle 1 1 0 2 4 

Criminal Damage To Other Building 0 2 0 0 2 

Other Criminal Damage 1 3 1 8 13 

Drugs 3 1 0 4 8 

Possession Of Drugs 3 1 0 4 8 

Other  Crime 8 7 1 1 17 

Robbery 2 0 2 2 6 

Personal Property 2 0 2 2 6 

Sexual Offences 4 1 2 2 9 

Other Sexual 4 1 2 2 9 

Theft and Handling 9 29 17 20 75 

Handling Stolen Goods 0 0 0 1 1 

Other Theft 3 21 8 7 39 

Other Theft Person 5 6 7 9 27 

Theft From Motor Vehicle 0 0 1 0 1 

Theft/Taking of Motor Vehicle 1 1 0 1 3 

Theft/Taking of Pedal Cycles 0 1 1 2 4 

Violence Against the Person 17 24 25 21 87 

Assault with Injury 7 4 5 3 19 

Common Assault 4 13 12 11 40 

Harassment 2 6 6 2 16 

Offensive Weapon 1 1 1 2 5 

Other Violence 1 0 0 0 1 

Serious Wounding 2 0 1 3 6 

Grand Total 46 68 49 60 223 
*Not open 24/7

The sexual offences vary in type from inappropriate touching (5), being photographed or filmed in the 

toilet (2), and peeping over a toilet cubicle (1). One incident was more aggressive with the victim being 
shoved against a wall and groped, however it is believed the victim knows the suspect and is unwilling to 

co-operate. 

The serious wounding crimes involve the victim being bottled (2), stabbed (3), or beaten/kicked 
unconscious (1). In 4 incidents the victims were customers, one was a security guard who had ejected 
the suspect earlier in the day, and one was stabbed when he got into a taxi outside McDonalds but it is 
unclear if he had been a customer prior to this. 

76



9 

Restaurant Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Total

Old Kent Road 7 3 2 7 5 12 10 46

Butterfly Walk 9 11 3 10 14 15 6 68

Walworth 7 4 14 2 10 7 5 49

Rye Lane 5 14 7 9 7 5 13 60

Total 28 32 26 28 36 39 34 223

Restaurant

ASB 

Calls

Old Kent Road 20

Butterfly Walk 37

Walworth Road 18

Rye Lane 14

Total 89

Time Bands

Old Kent 

Road

Butterfly 

Walk

Walworth 

Road Rye Lane Total

00:00-00:59 0 1 4 6 11

01:00-01:59 0 3 5 4 12

02:00-02:59 4 6 3 2 15

03:00-03:59 3 3 4 1 11

04:00-04:59 7 2 1 0 10

05:00-05:59 2 5 2 1 10

06:00-06:59 2 0 1 0 3

07:00-07:59 0 2 2 0 4

08:00-08:59 0 2 0 0 2

09:00-09:59 1 2 0 1 4

10:00-10:59 0 3 0 1 4

11:00-11:59 1 1 0 3 5

12:00-12:59 1 4 3 1 9

13:00-13:59 0 1 1 2 4

14:00-14:59 2 1 4 0 7

15:00-15:59 3 2 1 5 11

16:00-16:59 4 2 1 4 11

17:00-17:59 3 7 4 6 20

18:00-18:59 4 3 4 4 15

19:00-19:59 3 7 2 7 19

20:00-20:59 2 4 2 6 14

21:00-21:59 2 3 1 3 9

22:00-22:59 1 2 2 2 7

23:00-23:59 1 2 2 1 6

Total 46 68 49 60 223

Temporal analysis shows that while the overall busiest days are at the weekend, the peak days and 

times for crime at each restaurant varies: 

As would be expected, all premises show 
‘hotspots’ in the early evening during the post 
school/work period, and in the early hours.  
Lunchtimes cause less problems at most 
restaurants. 

Peak times for the Old Kent Road restaurant is 
04:00-4:59 hrs, these crimes occurred at 
weekends. 

The peaks in activity at Butterfly Walk are 
caused mostly by crimes committed on a 
Friday and Saturday. 

Peak times for Walworth Road are between 
00:00 and 04:00 hrs, with smaller numbers 

spread across the day/week. 

For Rye Lane, the crimes reported between 
01:00 -02:59 all occur on a Sunday morning 
when the restaurant closes at 02:00 

Anti-Social Behaviour: 

The number of calls to the police regarding ASB at McDonald’s restaurants 
between 01/10/2017 and 31/10/2018 are relatively low 

While Rye Lane was the location for 27% of the crime associated with 
McDonalds in the borough, it represents only 16% of the ASB calls. 

Due to the low numbers of calls associated with the individual McDonalds 

restaurants, temporal analysis of these incidents reveals little. Overall ASB 
associated with McDonalds peaks between 16:00-17:59, with Tuesday being the busiest day. 

77



10 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct

2017 2018
Old Kent Road Butterfly walk Walworth Road Rye Lane

McDonalds ASB calls by Month - Oct 17 - Oct 18 

As the following chart shows, the pattern of calls to the police regarding ASB varies by location, but all 

premises see a drop in activity during the school summer holiday.  

Calls to the Council regarding ASB and noise nuisance directly linked to McDonalds are low, and only one 
has been recorded in the 13 month period of this report.  This incident related to noise caused by a 
broken fan on the restaurants extraction system in October 2018. 

The Council Wardens have reported 6 incidents at or outside a McDonald’s restaurant during the period 
of this report.   All involve begging and all appear to be different individuals. 

 Butterfly Walk -  03/04/2018 & 30/05/2018

 Rye Lane – 13/12/2017, 29/03/2018. 02/07/2018 & 03/07/2018

Comparable McDonald’s restaurants elsewhere in London 

There are a number of McDonald’s restaurants at mainline stations in London. For comparison 
purposes, Liverpool Street would be the obvious choice as it is run by the same franchisee that will be 
operating the London Bridge restaurant; however as this sits within the City of London Police area, crime 
data is not readily available. 

Other McDonalds located at mainline stations include the following, none of which are open 24 hours a 
day: 

Location Opening Hours MPS Recorded Crimes 
Paddington 05:00 – 01:00 1 x Other Theft 

Victoria 05:00 – 00:30 3 x Other Theft 

Waterloo 05:00 - 01:00 2 x Other Theft 

As these restaurants are within the station, much of the crime will be reported to / dealt with by BTP.   

Published BTP crime data by month simply states “on/near xxx station”  for the location which does not 
allow any analysis of incidents relating specifically to the McDonalds. 

78



11 
 

Crime Type

155 Victoria 

Street 34-35 Strand

13-15 Euston 

Road

302-304 

Pentonville 

Road

518-522 

Brixton 

Road

Opening Hours
05:00-23:45 Su-W 

05:00-01:45 Th-Sa
24/7 24/7 24/7 24/7

Station Mainline Victoria Charing Cross

Kings Cross / 

St Pancras / 

Euston

Kings Cross / 

St Pancras
Brixton

Underground lines served
Victoria / District / 

Circle

Northern / 

Bakerloo

Northern  / 

Victoria

Northern / 

Victoria
Victoria

Crime Type

Criminal Damage 4 1 3 0 3

Criminal Damage To Other Building 0 0 0 0 2

Other Criminal Damage 4 1 3 0 1

Drugs 1 3 1 1 3

Drug Trafficking 0 1 0 0 1

Possession Of Drugs 1 2 1 1 2

Fraud or Forgery 2 0 2 0 0

Other Fraud & Forgery 2 0 2 0 0

Other Crime 1 3 2 0 4

Robbery 3 7 1 3 11

Personal Property 3 7 1 3 11

Sexual Offences 0 1 2 0 2

Other Sexual 0 1 2 0 2

Theft and Handling 18 49 27 8 75

Handling Stolen Goods 0 0 0 0 1

Other Theft 8 22 16 5 32

Other Theft Person 8 26 8 3 39

Theft From Shops 1 0 0 0 0

Theft from Motor Vehicle 0 0 1 0 0

Theft/Taking of Motor Vehicle 1 0 0 0 0

Theft/Taking of Pedal Cycles 0 1 2 0 3

Violence Against the Person 35 41 21 5 36

Assault with Injury 2 8 4 0 9

Common Assault 17 21 11 4 17

Harassment 13 5 6 4 7

Offensive Weapon 2 1 0 0 2

Other Violence 1 3 0 0 0

Serious Wounding 3 3 0 0 1

Total 64 105 59 17 134

Temporal Analysis

Peak Times
00:00-01:00 & 

15:00-16:59 03:00-05:59 00:00-01:59 01:00-01:59 02:00-02:59

Peak Days Wed & Sat Sun Fri & Sat Thu Sat & Sun

A look at crime related to other McDonalds restaurants located close to mainline train and 

underground transport hubs that are open 24 hours a day provides a view of the types of crime 

to be expected: 

 

Theft accounts for between 46% - 56% of reported crime at most restaurants, only Victoria differs, 
where Theft counts for only 28% of crime.  Victoria sees a much higher rate of violent crime (55%) 

compared with the other restaurants (27%-39%). 
 

 
 
 

79



12 

Most, if not all 24 hour McDonalds have private security to assist with maintaining public order. 

Anecdotal evidence from a McDonald’s restaurant in Shepherd’s Bush suggests that by making changes 

such as turning off free wifi, playing classical music and reducing the available seating between certain 
hours, has reduced crime and anti-social behaviour at the restaurant.1 McDonalds in Welwyn Garden 

City, Hertfordshire has also introduced similar measures in the ‘after school’ period to deter anti -social 
behaviour.2 

Assessment 

As the restaurant is accessed from Tooley Street, it is not limited by the openings times of the station. 

The main crime types associated with McDonalds restaurants are Other Theft/Theft Person and 
Common Assault.  73% of reported crime in the 200m area between Oct 2017 & Oct 2018 were theft 

crimes, it is likely that the opening of this restaurant may attract additional criminal activity, and extend 
the hours of this activity if open throughout the night. 

1
 https://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/mcdonalds -restaurant-cuts-antisocial-behaviour-by-playing-classical-

music-and-cutting-off-the-wifi-a3790176.html 
2
 https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-beds-bucks-herts-43513271 

80



From: Earis, Richard  

Sent: Monday, November 12, 2018 5:13 PM 
To: Regen, Licensing 

Cc: 'elaine.rayner@shoosmiths.co.uk' 
Subject: Objection to License application: McDonalds, Unit SU74, Tooley Street West, London Bridge 

Station 

RE: New License application McDonalds, Unit SU74, Tooley Street West, London Bridge Station 

I have considered the above on behalf of the Prevention of Public Nuisance Responsible Authority. 

I would like to object on the grounds that it is not sufficiently clear from the information contained 
within the application that the licensing objective will be met.  In particular there is a lack of clarity 
around risks of public nuisance from litter and noise. 

I would request that the applicant clarifies: 

 Exactly what are the proposed ‘litter patrol’ arrangements?

 How will noise from patrons consuming food in the public area outside the premises during
the night be managed? This is likely to be a destination for people leaving late night drinking
venues.

 Will the premises be accepting delivery orders (e.g. via uber eats or similar) after 23.00 and
if so what is the expected volume of orders and how will noise from delivery drivers be
managed at night?

Kind Regards, 

Richard 

Richard Earis 
Principal Environmental Protection Officer 
Environmental Protection Team 

020 7525 2469 

Postal address: Southwark Council | Environmental Protection Team | Regulatory Services | 3rd 
Floor Hub  1 | PO Box 64529 | London | SE1P 5LX. 

Office address (By appointment only): Southwark Council | Environmental Protection Team | 
Regulatory Services | 3rd Floor  Hub 1 | 160 Tooley Street | London | SE1 2QH 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

visit: http://www.southwark.gov.uk/air-quality 

Please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 

81

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/air-quality


MEMO:  Licensing Unit 

To Licensing Unit Date 12 November  2018 

Copies 

From Jayne Tear Telephone 020 7525 0396 Fax 

Email jayne.tear@southwark.gov.uk 

Subject Re: McDonald’s Restaurants, Unit SU74, Tooley Street West, London Bridge 

Station, London, SE1 2TF  –  Application for a premises licence  

I write with regards to the above application for a premises licence submitted Capital Arches 
Group Limited under the Licensing Act 2003, which seeks to add the following licensable 
activities: 

• Late night refreshment (outdoors) on Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 05:00 the following
day

• Overall opening times shall be on Monday to Sunday from 05:00 to 05:00 the following day

The premises is described as ‘The premises will operate as a restaurant selling food and non-
alcoholic drinks for consumption off the premises’.  

My representation is based on the Southwark Statement of Licensing policy 2016 – 2020 
and relates to the licensing objectives for the prevention of crime and disorder and the 
prevention of public nuisance. 

The premises is situated in the Bankside, Borough, London Bridge Strategic Cultural & 
Bankside and Borough District Town Centre Area and also falls within the Borough and 
Bankside CIP Area.  

Under the Southwark Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2020 the Local CIP applies to 
night clubs, public houses & bars, restaurants & cafes, off-licences, supermarkets, 
convenience stores and similar premises.  

Section six of the policy (from page 32) deals with Southwark’s local cumulative impact 
policies. This premises sits in the Borough and Bankside policy area as defined in paragraph 
129 of the policy and, as a restaurant/takeaway  premises falls into the class of premises in 
130 of the policy.  

Therefore under 119 of the policy there is a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
premises licenses that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be 
refused or subject to certain limitations. In such circumstances, it is for the applicant to 
demonstrate that the application will not, if granted, further contribute to the negative local 
cumulative impact on any one or more of the licensing objectives. 

82



The applicant has not addressed the presumption to refuse this application within the 
operating schedule. I would recommend refusal of this application unless the applicant can 
demonstrate that the premises will not contributing to crime and disorder and public nuisance 
within the policy area.  

The following conditions and amendments to the hours applied for would address my 
concerns and could assist the applicant in this rebuttal. 

Examples of factors that this Authority may consider as demonstrating that there will be no 
impact may include: (para.140 of the licensing policy) 

• Small premises intended to cease operation before midnight

• Premises which are not alcohol led and only operate during the day time economy

• Where a suite of conditions is proposed that will ensure that the premises operates in a
specified manner.

Therefore I ask the applicant to consider amending the times applied for as follows: 

• Late night refreshment (outdoors) on Monday to Sunday from 05:00 to 00:00

• Overall opening times shall be on Monday to Sunday from 05:00 to 00:00

Furthermore, due to the limited information provided with the application and to promote the 
licensing objectives I ask the applicant to provide the following information: 

• An accommodation limit for the premises (to be conditioned)

• A written dispersal policy for the premises (to be conditioned)

I therefore submit this representation and welcome any discussion with the applicant 

Southwark’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 – 2020 can be found on the following link: 
http://lbs-mapweb-01:9080/connect/Includes/APPIMA/SSOLP1620.pdf 

Jayne Tear 
Principal Licensing officer 
In the capacity of the Licensing Responsible Authority 

83



© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey (0)100019252. Land Registry Index data is subject to Crown copyright
and is reproduced with the permission of Land Registry.

APPENDIX C84



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018-19

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to 
Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Members

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Charlie Smith

Councillor Ian Wingfield (reserve)

Other Councillors

Councillor Adele Morris

1
1
1

By email

By email

Officers

Debra Allday, legal team
Dorcas Mills, licensing team
Richard Earis, environmental protection 
team
Jayne Tear, licensing team
P.C. Graham White

Andrew Weir (spares)                          

Total printed copies:                        

Dated:  30 November 2018

1
1
1

1
By email  

5

12


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003: Vodafone Smale House, 114 Great Suffolk Street  London SE1 0SL
	Appendix A
	Appendix B: Representation from police
	Appendix C: Representation from other person
	Appendix D: Map

	6 Licensing Act 2003: McDonald's, Unit SU74 Tooley Street West, London Bridge Station, London SE1 2TF
	Appendix A: Application
	Appendix B: Representations from responsible authorities
	Appendix C: Map

	 



